



**KORFBALL FEDERATION OF INDIA**  
**MEMORANDUM**  
**AND**  
**RULES AND REGULATIONS**  
**OF**  
**KORFBALL FEDERATION OF INDIA**  
**(AS AMMENDED UPTO 17<sup>th</sup> October, 2023)**

# INDEX

SR. NO.	DESCRIPTION	PAGE
	<b>MEMORANDUM</b>	
1.	NAME (ARTICLE-I)	1
2.	LOCATION OF OFFICE (ARTICLE-II)	1
3.	AIMS AND OBJECTS (ARTICLE-III)	1-2
	<b>RULES AND REGULATIONS</b>	
4.	DEFINATIONS (ARTICLE-I)	3
5.	NAME OF THE FEDERATION (ARTICLE-II)	3
6.	MEMBERSHIP (ARTICLE-III)	3-4
7.	MEMBERSHIP JURISDICTION AND CONDITIONS (ARTICLE-IV)	4
8.	MEMBERSHIP FEE (ARTICLE-V)	5
9.	MEMBERSHIP TERMINATION (ARTICLE-VI)	5-7
10.	ADMINISTRATION AND MANAGEMENT (ARTICLE-VII)	7-8
11.	COMMITTEES (ARTICLE-VIII)	8-9
12.	TENURE (ARTICLE-IX)	9-10
13.	MEETING – NOTICE – QUORUM (ARTICLE-X)	10
14.	NATIONAL SPORTS CODE (ARTICLE-XI)	11
15.	OFFICIE BEARERS INELIGIBILITY (ARTICLE-XII)	11
16.	ELECTIONS (ARTICLE-XIII)	11-13
17.	OFFICE BEARERS REMOVAL- VACANCIES (ARTICLE-XIV)	13
18.	VOTING (ARTICLE-XV)	13-14
19.	OFFICE BEARERS' DUTIES (ARTICLE-XVI)	14-15
20.	POWER TO AMEND (ARTICLE-XVII)	16
21.	RULES IINTERPRETATIONS (ARTICLE-XVIII)	16
22.	MEMBERS AND OFFICE BEARERS' QUAIFICATION (ARTICLE-XIX)	16
23.	DISQUAIFICATION (ARTICLE-XX)	17
24.	SOURCES OF FUNDS (ARTICLE-XXI)	17
25.	EXECUTIVE COUNCIL POWERS, FUNCTIONS AND DUTIES (ARTICLE-XXII)	17-18
26.	MINUTES OF MEETING (ARTICLE-XXIII)	18
27.	AUDITOR (ARTICLE-XXIV)	18
28.	ARBITRATION (ARTICLE-XXV)	19
29.	RESIDUAL POWERS (ARTICLE-XXVI)	19
30.	FINACE/ACCOUNTS (ARTICLE-XXVII)	19
31.	ANNUAL LIST (ARTICLE-XXVIII)	19
32.	LEGAL PROCEEDINGS (ARTICLE-XXIX)	19
33.	AMENDMENT (ARTICLE-XXX)	20
34.	DISSOLUTION (ARTICLE-XXXI)	20
35.	APPLICABILITY (ARTICLE-XXXII)	20
36.	ESSENTIAL CERTIFICATE (ARTICLE-XXXIII)	20

# KORFBALL FEDERATION OF INDIA

Affiliated to the International Korfball Federation

## MEMORANDUM OF CONSTITUTION

### Article-I NAME OF THE FEDERATION:

This Federation, which is registered under the Societies Registration Act, 1860 vide No.S/13088 of 1982 on 26-11-1982, shall be known as 'KORFBALL FEDERATION OF INDIA', hereinafter called 'K.F.I.'.

### Article-II LOCATION OF OFFICE:

The office of the Federation is located in the Union Territory of Delhi Registered address at 3/79 Ram Gali, Vishwas Nagar, Shahdara- Delhi – 110032 (INDIA), and Correspondence address C/119, Upper Ground Floor, Near Blind School, New Rajender Nagar, New Delhi – 110060 (INDIA).

### Article-III AIMS AND OBJECTS:

1. To promote, encourage and develop the sport of Korfball.
  2. To organise and maintain general control over Korfball in India.
  3. To provide facilities for training of players and impart knowledge and technique of the sport of Korfball in India.
  4. To render, as and when possible, financial assistance to its affiliated Units for the promotion of the sport of Korfball.
  5. To promote and if possible, give financial assistance for visits of Indian Korfball teams for participation in competitions /tournaments abroad.
  6. To coordinate activities amongst members by holding tournaments/ championship /clinics and any other possible manner.
  7. To maintain a library of sports Journals and other literature with particular reference to Korfball.
  8. To protect the interest of players of Korfball in India.
- To grant scholarship /monetary help in deserving cases to Korfball players/coaches through the concerned State / U.T. Associations.



*Human*

*[Handwritten signature]*

*[Handwritten signature]*

10. Generally to do such other acts as may be considered desirable or necessary to further the cause of the game of Korfball and the Federation.
11. To co-ordinate with the affiliated Units of K.F.I., the Indian Olympic Association, the Sports Authority of India, the Ministry of Youth Affairs & Sports, Government of India, Department / Ministry of Sports of various State Governments & their respective Sports Authorities, the International Korfball Federation, or other such organisations and departments in pursuance of the aims & objects of the K.F.I.
12. The income of the Federation shall be utilized for the promotion of its aims & objects.
13. To act against practices of doping, age fraud, sexual harassment etc in Korfball in India.



*Himanshu*

*Sanjay Kumar Singh*

*Rodger*

# KORFBALL FEDERATION OF INDIA

Affiliated to the International Korfball Federation

## Rules and Regulations

### Article-I DEFINITIONS:

- (a) Unless otherwise indicated in reference, 'Federation' shall mean the 'KORFBALL FEDERATION OF INDIA'.
- (b) "State / Union Territory Association' shall mean any State / Union Territory Association affiliated to the Korfball Federation of India.
- (c) 'Member' shall mean an organisation which is affiliated as a Member of the Korfball Federation of India
- (d) 'Constitution' shall mean the Constitution of the Korfball Federation of India and the Rules & Regulations made there under.
- (e) 'Federation year' shall mean the official financial year of the Korfball Federation of India, which shall be from 1<sup>st</sup> April to 31<sup>st</sup> March of the following year.
- (f) 'General Council' means and includes representatives of the affiliated Members in accordance with the Rules and Regulations hereinafter contained.
- (g) 'Founder Member' shall mean the eleven members who started / founded / formed the KFI. Founder members shall not have voting rights until / unless contested election of board position / office bearers.

### Article –II NAME OF THE FEDERATION

The Federation shall be known as 'Korfball Federation of India' hereinafter called 'KFI'

### Article –III MEMBERSHIP

1. The membership of Federation shall be open, subject to the approval of the General Council, to the under mentioned:
  - (i) Korfball Associations established in States and Union Territories. The geographical boundaries of a State / Union Territory shall be as recognised by the Constitution of India and the Government of India. Not more than one Association from each State or Union Territory can be a Member of K.F.I. at the same time.



*Himanshu*

*[Signature]*

*[Signature]*

The KFI affiliated States / Union Territories associations should have at least 50% active and affiliated district associations.

- (ii) Sports Control Boards (without Voting Rights).
2. New membership will be granted provisionally and the performance of any new Member will be watched / observed by an observer nominated by the Executive Council of the KFI for a period not exceeding five years. Confirmation of new members shall be subject to their performance to the satisfaction of the General Council.
  3. Application for affiliation / membership from an Association / Sports Control Board shall be submitted to the Secretary-General of K.F.I. who will then place it before the Executive Council for their recommendation to the General Council. The Executive Council may reject any application for affiliation / membership without assigning any reason. So may the General Council.
  4. Prominent sportspersons of outstanding merit in Korfball & having represented India in international events shall be nominated as "Nominated Members" for a period of 4 years each at a time, with voting rights. The number of such nominated members shall be 25% of total members of Executive Council, as per guidelines of National Sports Code, Ministry of Sports, Government of India.

#### Article -IV **JURISDICTION AND CONDITIONS OF MEMBERSHIP**

- a. The territorial Jurisdiction of a state / u.t. association shall ordinarily be the administrative area of the Unit concerned. No Member shall either extend or alter such area without having obtained the consent of the Federation, nor shall it affiliate a club or a District Association out of his jurisdiction.
- b. The Federation shall be the sole authority of the eligibility of Association to be Members of the Federation.
- c. To be eligible for Membership under Articles III (1) (i), an Association shall prove to the satisfaction of the Federation that has at least 50% of the district-level Korfball Associations within its jurisdiction affiliated to it and that it is a registered body.



*Human*

*Secretary*

*Reddy*

Article -V **MEMBERSHIP FEE (SUBSCRIPTION)**

1. Each Member Association shall pay Rs. 2000/- as admission fee and an equivalent amount as annual fee thereafter.
2. Each Sports Control Board affiliated as a member shall pay Rs. 5000/- as admission fee and an equal amount as annual fee thereafter.
3. The annual fee shall be payable in advance before the 30<sup>th</sup> March each year.
4. A member failing to pay its dues to the Federation by 30<sup>th</sup> June shall be treated as a defaulter. In the event of the failure of a Member to clear all dues by the 30<sup>th</sup> June the Member would forfeit its Membership and would not be entitled to participate in any of the activities of the Federation.
5. A member who has lost the right to participation in the activities of the Federation on account of default as referred to in clause (4) above, will be considered eligible for restoration of membership only on payment of all outstanding dues. It may also be called upon to pay fresh admission fee.
6. State / Union Territory Association must participate in at least one of the National Championship (i.e. sub-junior, Junior or Senior) organised by KFI every year.

Article -VI **TERMINATION OF MEMBERSHIP**

1. Membership is terminated forthwith when:
  - a. A State / Union Territory Association or a Sports Control Board gives notice to this effect at its own will.
  - b. A State / Union Territory Association / Sports control Board affiliated to the K.F.I. ceases to exist.
  - c. The General Council issues an expulsion order.
  - d. If any state / union territory association do not participate in at least one of the National Championship (i.e. Sub-Junior, Junior or Senior) organised by KFI every year.



*Himan Shu*

*[Signature]*

*[Signature]*

2.
  - a. Membership ceases on the last day of the Federation Year in which written notice of information of membership is the state/Union Territory Association/Board concerned.
  - b. The State /Union Territory Association / Board that has given notice of termination of membership will be regarded as still being a member until the end of the Federation Year or so long as that Association / Board has not fulfilled its financial obligations towards that K.F.I. or so long as any other matter in which the Association /Board is involved, including disciplinary action already imposed but not yet carried out, has not been finally resolved. During such period, the Association / Board concerned cannot exercise any rights, except the right to lodge an appeal within the stipulated time.
3. Membership ceases on the day of the Federation General Council / Executive Council has given notice of termination of membership. The notice can be given:
  - (i) When an Association / Board can no longer be regarded as the Association / Board responsible for the apart of Korfball in that State / Union territory / Organisation.
  - (ii) When a State Association / Board after being summoned by registered letter or Email to do so by the Executive Council of the K.F.I., fails, after one month's or as specified by General or Executive council, to fulfill its financial and other obligation to the K.F.I.
  - (iii) When the K.F.I. cannot reasonably be expected to allow Membership to continue.
4. The General Council Meeting can deprive a State / Union Territory Association / Board of membership if it acts contrary or in detriment to the Constitution of the KFI and /or the resolutions of one of its organs, or in a manner unreasonably damaging to the K.F.I. Membership ends immediately after a resolution by the General Council to this effect. Pending a decision of the General Council, the Executive Council or the President acting on behalf of the Executive Council can temporarily deprive an Association / Board of its rights as a Member.
5. In the event of Membership ending because an Association / Board affiliated to the K.F.I. ceases to exist, or because provisions stated in clause (4) of this Article have been enforced, the annual contributions and levies will still be due for payment, in full.



*Himanshu*

*[Signature]*

*[Signature]*

6. A State / Union Territory Association / Board which is expelled by a resolution adopted in the General Council meeting or whose membership has been terminated by the General Council, can be readmitted as Member of the K.F.I. only by the General Council Meeting after a period of reconsideration.
7. The KFI intends to develop korfbal in true spirit, therefore, the State / U.T. Associations without any korfbal activity will be suspend / terminated. It becomes mandatory to State / U.T. korfbal Associations to organize State Korfbal Championships or Inter District Championships before they participate in National Korfbal Championships. The State/ U.T. team shall be selected during these State/ U.T. level Championships and a proper coaching camp should be organized prior to participation in National Championship. Failure to participate in one National championship during a year, the State / U.T. korfbal association shall lose its voting right in General Assembly and subsequently lose its membership rights.

#### Article -VII **ADMINISTRATION AND MANAGEMENT**

The Administration and Management of the Federation and the enforcement of its Rules and Regulations shall vest in the Office Bearers and the bodies referred to hereinafter.

##### (i) **OFFICE BEARERS**

The Federation will have the following Office Bearers:

- |                            |                              |
|----------------------------|------------------------------|
| a. President               | One                          |
| b. Vice President          | Five (Including one ladies)  |
| c. Secretary General       | One                          |
| d. Joint Secretary         | Five (Including one ladies)  |
| e. Honorary Treasurer      | One                          |
| f. Executive Member        | Five                         |
| g. Nominated Sports Person | Six (Including three ladies) |



*Himanshu*

*[Handwritten signature]*

*[Handwritten signature]*

(ii) GENERAL COUNCIL

The General Council will consist of two representatives from each Member State / U.T. Association, Founder members (without voting rights), Sports Control Board (without voting rights), in addition to the office bearers listed above.

(iii) EXECUTIVE COUNCIL

The Executive Council of the Federation shall comprise the following.

1. All Office Bearers mentioned at Article VII (i).
2. The President shall have a casting vote which he would utilize at his discretion.

Article -VIII COMMITTEES:

To assist the Federation, the following Seven Committees would be constituted by the Executive Council, in the manner indicated.

(i) FINANCE COMMITTEE.

It will consist of a Chairman and four persons, of whom the Honorary Treasurer would be one. Its duty will be to examine the accounts of the Federation before their presentation to the Executive Council. It will also be responsible for generally taking care of the funds of the Federation.

(ii) SELECTION COMMITTEE.

It will consist of a Chairman and four persons. Its duty will be to select the National Team for participation in the various National and International competitions /tournaments.

(iii) REFEREE'S COMMITTEE

It will consist of Chairman and four persons. The duty of the Referee's Committee will be to supervise refereeing arrangement during the national and other Championship, including International Competitions.



Himanshu

*[Handwritten signature]*

*[Handwritten signature]*

(iv) TECHNICAL COMMITTEE

It will consist of a Chairman and four persons preferably those having sound knowledge of the rules of the game and other technical aspects like equipment, ground, and other arrangements. This committee would concern itself with all technical aspects of the game and will also function as the Disciplinary committee of the federation. Each of the above four committees would be headed by the Senior Vice –President and the three Vice-Presidents. The President shall nominate one each of them to the above committees.

(v) ATHLETES COMMISSION

The Mission of the KFI Athletes' Commission is to ensure that the athletes' viewpoint remains at the heart of the Council decisions.

(vi) ARBITRATION COMMISSION

Arbitration Commission should be an independent and unbiased commission to resolve disputes within KFI. In case of any dispute, the associations / members of KFI should approach to Arbitration Commission before going to any Honorable Court in India.

(vii) ETHICS COMMISSION

The Ethics Commission establishes the Code of Ethics and, in the event of a violation of the ethical principles, analyses complaints and proposes sanctions.

(viii) AD-HOC COMMITTEES

The Executive Council shall have the right to appoint and constitute Ad-Hoc Committees for governance and day to day administration for state associations who are not conducting their activities in the interest of Korfball or not adhering to the directives and rules of the KFI or not holding their elections timely on a tenure basis and lastly if they are serious issues with respect to the interference in the functioning of the State Associations by third parties

Article -IX TENURE

- (i) Office Bearers and Members of Executive Council shall be elected on obtaining simple majority votes of the members present and voting in the election. The Tenure of Office Bearers of the Executive Council shall be four years. 'Term' shall normally mean a period of 4 years.



*Himanshu*

*[Signature]*

*[Signature]*

- (ii) No Member shall hold the post of President for more than three consecutive terms or twelve years, whichever is less.
- (iii) No Member shall hold the post of Secretary General or Treasurer for more than two consecutive terms or eight years, whichever is less, but can contest for the post of President after completion of two terms or eight years with a cooling off period of 4 years.
- (iv) The President, Secretary and Treasurer shall cease to hold that post on attaining the age of 70 years.

Article -X **SUMMONING OF MEETING, NOTICE REQUIRED AND QUORUM**

The notice required for summoning meetings of the General Council, the Executive Council and the various Committees and the quorum required would be as follows:-

1. GENERAL COUNCIL MEETING

Quorum: One-third of the membership

Period of notice: 30 days

2. SPECIAL MEETING OF THE GENERAL COUNCIL

Period of notice: 15 days

Quorum: One-third of the membership

3. REQUISITIONED GENERAL COUNCIL MEETING

Period of notice: 10 days

Quorum: One-third of the membership

4. EXECUTIVE COUNCIL MEETING

Period of notice: 7 days

Quorum: One-third of the membership.

5. EMERGENT MEETING OF GENERAL COUNCIL

Period of Notice: 7 days

Quorum: One-third of the membership

6. COMMITTEE & COMMISSION MEETING

Period of Notice: 3 days

Quorum: One-third of the members of the Committee.

- b. A meeting of the General Council could be requisitioned on a request signed by at least 2/3 of the total membership of the General Council. The Secretary-General will requisition such a meeting within seven days of receipt of such notice.

In the event of there being an insufficient quorum in any meeting of the General Council, Executive Council or any of the Committee, the respective Chairman may adjourn it, but order reassembling at a suitable time on the same day. No quorum will be necessary for such a re-convened meeting.



*Humanika*

*Secretary*

*President*

Article -XI **NATIONAL SPORTS CODE**

National Sports Code / Policy of Ministry of Youth Affairs & Sports, Government of India shall supersede if any rule is in conflict to it.

Any guidelines issued by MYAS or change in MYAS Sports Code shall apply to this federation with immediate effect.

Article -XII **INELIGIBILITY TO HOLD OTHER OFFICES:**

Office Bearers/ Executive Council members shall not be eligible to hold any post or should not be part of Executive Council in any other National Sports Federation of the Country (other than Indian Olympic Association) or of any other State Sports Association outside of the members of KFI or as per National Sports Code of Ministry of Youth Affairs & Sports, Government of India.

Government servant cannot hold an elective post in state/UT Associations and National Federation for two terms or 5 years, whichever is earlier.

Article -XIII **ELECTIONS:**

Election Bye-laws as described in Annexure XXXVII of National Sports Code & Policy, Ministry of Youth Affairs & Sports, Government of India, shall govern the conduct of Election of Office Bearers and Members of Executive Council.

1. Manner of Election:

Office Bearers and Members of Executive Council of K.F.I. shall be electing by secret ballot.

The election shall be held at the Annual General Meeting (AGM) in accordance with the procedure prescribed hereinafter, from amongst the representatives of the State/ Union Territories Associations.

2. Electoral College:

(i) Each State / Union Territories Associations duly affiliated by K.F.I. shall have two votes at the Elections of the Office Bearers and Executive Council Members.

(ii) Each State / Union Territories Associations shall be represented by two members authorized by the President / Secretary.



*Himan Singh*

*[Signature]*

*[Signature]*

(iii) The President / Secretary General of K.F.I. shall prepare the list of the authorized representatives of the State / Union Territories Associations Form 1, and circulate a copy to all Members.

3. Returning Officer:

Returning Officer shall be appointed by the President with the approval in E.C. Meeting. The President / Secretary General shall also furnish a duly authenticated copy of the list of representatives of the State / Union Territories Associations to the Returning Officer.

4. Nomination of Candidates:

(i) The Nomination of a Candidate shall be made in Form 2 duly proposed by one of the representatives of Member unit whose name is included in the Electoral College list and also subscribed by 1(one) such representative as seconded.

(ii) Any Candidate contesting the election is a Government Servant he/she shall produce a copy of Prior Permission (NOC) obtained from his/her Government department. Government servant cannot hold an elective post in state/UT Associations and National Federation for two terms or 5 years, whichever is earlier.

(iii) Candidates contesting election shall produce a proper age proof.

(iv) The Office Bearer of another National Sports Federation shall not be eligible for election as Office Bearer and member of the Executive Council of K.F.I.

5. Scrutiny of Nominations:

The Returning officer in his office shall scrutinize each nomination paper in the presence of each candidate or one of his/her authorized representative.

6. Withdrawal of Candidatures:

Each candidate whose nomination has been found valid on scrutiny shall be entitled to withdraw his/her candidature in Form 5.

7. Uncontested Returns; and contested Elections:

(i) Where the number of contesting Candidates for any post or category of post is equal to the number of posts to be filled, all such contesting candidates shall be deemed to be duly elected unopposed to those posts and it shall not be necessary to take a poll for election to such post.

(ii) Where the number of contesting Candidates for any post or category of post is more than the number of posts to be filled, a poll shall be taken by secret ballot for those posts remaining unfilled.



*Himanshu*

*[Signature]*

*[Signature]*

## 8. Counting of Votes:

The Returning Officer shall take up the counting of votes as soon as may be after the polling for any post is complete.

## 9. Declaration of Results:

The names of contesting Candidates who shall be deemed to have been elected at the election shall be declared as having been duly elected to their respective posts, by the Returning Officer at the Annual General Meeting (AGM).

10. For all other Rules in connection to Election shall be followed the Rules as prescribed in Annexure XXXVII of National Sports Code & Policy, Ministry of Youth Affairs & Sports, Govt. of India.

11. All Forms as given in Annexure XXXVII of National Sports Code & Policy, Ministry of Youth Affairs & Sports, Govt. of India. Shall be considered as Form for the purpose of Election of K.F.I.

Article -XIV **VACANCIES, REMOVAL OF OFFICE BEARERS AND FILLING UP OF VACANCIES.**

The office of a member of the Executive Council (Including that of an Office Bearer) shall fall vacant:-

- a. If the State / U.T. / Sports Board he represents ceases to be a Member.
- b. If he/she resigns his office by a notice, in writing, to the Secretary General / President and his resignation is accepted by the Executive Council /General Council. (In the case of the Secretary General, the letter of resignation shall be addressed to the President).
- c. The Office Bearer shall lose his office if the General Council so decides by a majority vote of two-thirds of all the Members.
- d. If he/she absents himself/herself from three consecutive meetings of the Executive Council without the leave of absence of the Executive Council.
- e. Any vacancy (Including that of the President) which occurs in the Executive Council shall be filled by election for the remaining tenure.

Article -XV **VOTING**

- (i) Only State /Union Territories Associations shall have right to vote, each State /Union Territories Association shall have two votes. This rule supersedes all the voting rights mentioned in this constitution.



*Himan Singh*

*[Signature]*

*[Signature]*

- (ii) At that General meeting of the General Council, each member (State / Union Territories Associations) shall be entitled to send two representatives; each representative shall have one vote.
- (iii) Proxy voting is not allowed in any case.

Article -XVI **DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF OFFICE BEARERS**

(i) **PRESIDENT**

The President shall be the head of the Federation and the Executive Council. He will generally guide the activities of the Federation and would have overriding authority over the affairs of the Federation. In particular, the President shall have the following powers/ responsibilities:

- a. In an emergent situation, take the decision on behalf of the Executive Council. All such decision shall be reported at the next meeting of the Executive Council / General Council for ratification.
- b. The President shall have powers to authorize expenditure upto Rs. 5,00,000/- in emergent cases. Such expenditure, however, will requiresubsequent verification of the Executive Council.
- c. To fix the date, time and place for the meetings of the General Council and the executive council.

(ii) **VICE-PRESIDENT**

In the absence of the President, one of the senior most Vice-President served, shall act as Chairman of the meetings.

(iii) **SECRETARY-GENERAL**

The Secretary-General shall be the Chief Executive of the Federation and will be responsible for its day to any administration. He will ensure a faithful implementation of the decisions of the General Council, the Executive Council and the various committees. Subject to the control of the President, the General Council and the Executive Council, the Secretary-General shall be responsible for the followingfunctions:

- i. Convene all meetings of the Assembly/ Executive/General Council and other committees of which he is the convener.
- ii. Keep and maintain minutes of all meetings, register of Members and all such records as may be necessary for the smooth and efficient working of the federation.



*Human*

*Secretary*

*President*

- iii. He Shall have the custody of and maintain in proper order and condition all the documents, correspondence, trophies, souvenir and seals and insignia of the Federation and of all movable and immovable properties of the Federation and maintain upto date stock book and have the annual stock taking done of all such properties.
- iv. Prepare and submit the annual report of the federation to the General Council at the Annual General Meeting after obtaining the approval of the Executive Council.
- v. Exercise general supervision over the employees of the Federation.
  - vi. Ensure that the accounts of the federation are properly maintained by the Hony. Treasurer and that payment of affiliation fee by the Hony. Treasurer to the International Korfball Federation are regularly made and that the same are regularly audited.
- vii. The Secretary General is authorised to sanction expenditure upto Rs. 3,00,000/- for any single item. Such expenditure will be subject to subsequent ratification by the General Council.

(iv) **JOINT SECRETARIES**

It would be the duty of the Joint Secretaries to assist the Secretary General and the Executive Council in such manner as may be required.

(v) **HONY. TREASURER**

The Hony. Treasurer shall be generally responsible for the resource mobilisation and control on expenditure of the federation. In particular, his duties would include:

- (a) To prepare and place the budget estimate under different heads of expenditure of income and expenditure of the federation, for the year before the Executive Council and the Annual General Council Meeting every year and obtain the necessary sanction, along with the audited Balance Sheet for the preceding year.
- (b) To make all payments on behalf of the federation after the necessary bills and vouchers have been duly checked by him and passed for payments by the Secretary General.

(c) To have complete charge of all funds of the federation.

(d) To arrange for the timely auditing of the annual accounts.

(e) To convene the meetings of the Finance Committees and when required.



*Human*

*[Signature]*

*[Signature]*

Article -XVII **POWER TO AMEND**

1. The General Council shall have the power to amend or modify any of the provisions of the Constitution and the Rules of the Federation.
2. Any suggestions for the amendment of the Constitution/Rules shall be submitted to the Secretary-General who would circulate them to all the Members of the Executive Council and the General Council for their information. Such suggestions will be taken up at the General Council meeting held immediately after the receipt of such suggestions by the Secretary-General.
3. The amendment of the Constitution/Rules would be carried by not less than two third majorities in the General Council.

Article -XVIII **INTERPRETATION OF RULES**

If any question arises regarding the interpretation of the Constitution or any of the Rules, the decision of the Executive Council shall be conclusive, final and binding on all concerned.

Article -XIX **QUALIFICATION OF OFFICE BEARERS AND MEMBERS**

1. The office-bearers and members of the General Council Executive Council and its various Committees would be as follows:-
  - (i) They should be citizens of India
  - (ii) They should be above 21 years of age.
  - (iii) They should be persons with sound-judgment.
  - (iv) They should not have been convicted by a court of law.
  - (v) Only 2 persons from a member state / u.t. association could file nomination.
2. Secretary General or Treasurer, who has completed two terms, cannot contest for the post of President without undergoing cooling off period of 4 years.
3. For contesting for various positions in Executive Council, only members of State/UT Associations are eligible to contest and to file their nominations.
4. The President and the Secretary General shall scrutinise the accreditation of the Members before the commencement of the proceedings of the General Council/ Executive Council.
5. Government servant cannot hold an elective post in state/UT Associations and National Federation for two terms or 5 years, whichever is earlier.



*Himan Singh*

*[Signature]*

*[Signature]*

Article -XX **DISQUALIFICATION**

The following shall not be eligible to be the office bearers of the members of the General Council or the Executive Council.

1. A person who has been adjudged by a competent court to be the unsound mind or is deaf and mute or is suffering from leprosy.
2. A person who is an undercharged insolvent.
3. A person who has been convicted of a criminal offense involving moral turpitude.
4. A person who is ineligible by virtue of any rule or bye-laws of the federation.
5. The Office Bearer/ Member of another National Sports Federation shall not be eligible as Office Bearer and member of the K.F.I.

Article -XXI **SOURCES OF FUNDS**

The revenues of the K.F.I. shall consists of subscriptions, levies, donations, patronage, Souvenirs, income from publications, administrative contributions, money paid in connection with international/national competitions and such other events.

Article -XXII **POWER, FUCTIONS AND DUTIES OF THE EXECUTIVECOUNCIL**

1. To carry out the objects of the Federation as specified in this Memorandum of the Federation.
2. To conduct the business of the Federation during the interval between meetings of the General Council and report all major decisions and actions to the General Council for its approval whenever necessary.
3. To arrange to supervise and administer the funds of the federation.
4. To appoint sports sub-committees for specified functions and duties whenever necessary, subject to the approval of the General Council.
5. To initiate and recommend to the General Council, schemes for the promotion and development of the game in this country.
6. To recommend to the General Council, to admit new member organisation eligible under the constitution.
7. To decide cases of indiscipline, misconduct, protest, breach of regulations, and whenever necessary impose suitable penalties against individuals, subject to their right of appeal to the General Council.
8. To approve disciplinary action and hear appeals against such action taken by subordinate bodies.
9. To fill any vacancy of office bearer and in the Executive Council.



*Himanshu*

*[Signature]*

*[Signature]*

10. To consider the Annual Report prepared by the Secretary-General and the Annual Audited Statement of Accounts of the Hony. Treasurer and submit the same with their recommendation to the Council.
11. To recommend to the General Council the representative of the Federation to the Indian Olympic Association and any other body.
12. To invest the funds of the Federation in such manner as the Executive Council may deem fit and very such investments, if and when necessary.
13. To co-opt as and when necessary, any expert or specialist for any specific purpose, but such a person will have now power to vote.
14. To fix the passage money and other expenses for the representative (s) of the Federation to attend meetings of the Indian Olympic Association or any other body.
15. To fix the passage money and other expenses of an Indian Team or any other representative of the Federation going out of India, if not otherwise prescribed under the constitution.
16. To provide buildings, premises, furniture, apparatus and other means needed for carrying out the work of the federation and to frame Rules there for.
17. To enter into, vary, carry out and cancel any contract on behalf of the Federation.
18. To explain, define and interpret the provisions of this Constitution in case of any dispute, subject to right of appeal to this General Council.
19. To exercise such other powers and to perform such other duties as may be assigned to it by the General Council.
20. To certify the status of Indian Players for any post.
21. To do all such acts and things as are incidental or contusive to the fulfillment of the forgoing acts or any of them.

Article -XXIII **MINUTES OF MEETINGS**

The minutes of the meetings of the General Council and Executive Council shall be prepared by the Secretary-General who would submit to the President, for approval, who shall grant approval and As far as possible, Minutes will be circulated.

Article -XXIV **APPOINT OF AUDITORS**

Accounts will be got audited from a Chartered Accountant on such remuneration as the Executive Council may deem fit and be presented before the Annual General Meeting. The Chartered Accountant shall be appointed by the Executive Council.



*Himan Singh*

*Secretary*

*President*

Article -XXV **ARBITRATION OF DISPUTES**

Any dispute between two Members, or between the Federation and a Member, would be referred to Arbitration Commission who would deliberate on the issue and prepare a report. The Arbitration Commission shall submit its report and recommendations to the Executive Council to take the final decision, and the same shall be conclusive and binding on all the disputing parties.

Article -XXVI **RESIDUAL POWERS**

Any matter not provided for in these Rules shall be dealt with by the Executive Council. The Executive Council may in its discretion, refer any matter to the General Council.

Article -XXVII **ACCOUNT OR FINANCE**

1. The funds received on behalf of the Federation shall be deposited in a bank, as approved by the Executive Council. The banking account shall be operated by the President or Senior Vice President or Secretary General or Secretary as well as that of Hon'y. Treasurer of the Federation.
2. No expenditure which is not included in the budget passed at the Annual General Meeting shall be incurred except with the approval of the President. Such expenditure will be reported to the Council at its next meeting.

Article -XXVIII **SUBMISSION OF ANNUAL LISTS**

Submission of Annual Lists as per section 4 of S R Act: Once in every year a list of the Executive Council (Governing body) shall be filed with the Registrar of Societies as required under section 4 of the Societies Registration Act of 1860.

Article -XXIX **LEGAL PROCEEDINGS**

Legal proceedings as per section 6 of S.R. Act 1860. The Society may sue or be sued in the name of President /Secretary General as per provisions laid down under section 6 of the Societies registration act of 1860.



*Himan Shu*

*Sanjay Singh*

*Rodger*

Article -XXX **AMENDMENT**

Amendment as per section 12 and 12A of S.R. Act 1860. Any kind of amendment in the Constitution of the society shall be made in accordance with section 12 and 12A of S R Act 1860.

Any amendment to the Constitution of KFI will require passing of amendment by at least 2/3 of the Members, in the course of a General Council meeting / Executive Council Meeting.

Article -XXXI **DISSOLUTION**

If necessary, the society can be dissolved as per provisions laid down under section 13 and 14 of the Societies Registration Act of 1860.

Article -XXXII **APPLICABILITY CLAUSE**

All the provisions of the Societies Registration Act of 1960 (Punjab Amendment Act, 1957), as extended to the Union Territory of Delhi will apply to this society.

Article -XXXIII **ESSENTIAL CERTIFICATE**

Certified that this is the correct copy of the Constitution & Rules and Regulations of the Society.



*Himanshu*

President  
Himanshu Mishra

*Abin Thomas V.*

Secretary General  
Abin Thomas V.

*P. K. Poddar*

Hony. Treasurer  
P. K. Poddar